BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORP \DE\
Form 10-Q
August 13, 2015
Table of Contents

# **UNITED STATES**

# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

(Mark One)
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2015
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For transition period from to
Commission file number 000-27464

# **BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION**

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 95-4547287

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

90036

(Zip Code)

## 5055 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 500

Los Angeles, California (Address of principal executive offices)

(323) 634-1700
(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No []
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes [X] No[]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated, or a smaller reporting company.  See the definition of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large Accelerated Filer [ ] Accelerated Filer [ ] Non-Accelerated Filer [ ] Smaller Reporting Company [ X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes [ ] No [ X]
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date: As of August 5, 2015.

21,405,188 shares of the Registrant s voting common stock and 7,671,520 shares of the Registrant s non-voting common stock were outstanding.

# Table of Contents

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION		Page
	Item 1.	Financial Statements	
		Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of June 30, 2015 (unaudited) and December 31, 2014	1
		Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (unaudited) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014	2
		Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014	3
		Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	4
	Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	22
	Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	31
	Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	31
PART II.	OTHER INFORMATION		
	Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	32
	Item 1A.	Risk Factors	32
	Item 2.	<u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	32
	Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	32
	Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	32
	Item 5.	Other Information	32
	Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	32
	Signatures		34

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

## **Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition**

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets	une 30, 2015 naudited)	Dec	ember 31, 2014
Assus			
Cash and due from banks	\$ 5,396	\$	5,740
Federal funds	46,265		15,050
Cash and cash equivalents	51,661		20,790
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value	15,647		17,075
Loans receivable held for sale, at lower of cost or fair value	81,985		19,481
Loans receivable held for investment, net of allowance of \$6,923 and \$8,465	195,154		276,643
Accrued interest receivable	1,050		1,216
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock	2,915		4,254
Office properties and equipment, net	2,628		2,697
Real estate owned (REO)	2,178		2,082
Bank owned life insurance	2,851		2,821
Investment in affordable housing limited partnership	1,021		1,117
Other assets	2,129		2,687
Total assets	\$ 359,219	\$	350,863
Liabilities and stockholders equity			
Liabilities:			
Deposits	\$ 232,152	\$	217,867
FHLB advances	77,500		86,000
Junior subordinated debentures	5,100		5,100
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance	1,037		1,081
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	3,782		3,557
Total liabilities	319,571		313,605
Stockholders Equity:			
Common stock, \$.01 par value, voting, authorized 50,000,000 shares at June 30, 2015 and			
December 31, 2014; issued 21,509,179 shares at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014; outstanding			
21,405,188 shares at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014	215		215
Common stock, \$.01 par value, non-voting, authorized 25,000,000 shares at June 30, 2015 and			
December 31, 2014; issued and outstanding 7,671,520 shares at June 30, 2015 and December 31,			
2014	77		77
Additional paid-in capital	44,669		44,669
Accumulated deficit	(4,088)		(6,539)
Accumulated other comprehensive income	104		165
Treasury stock-at cost, 103,991 shares at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014	(1,329)		(1,329)
Total stockholders equity	39,648		37,258
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 359,219	\$	350,863

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ to\ unaudited\ consolidated\ financial\ statements.$ 

# BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

# **Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income**

## (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
	2	015	,	2014		2015	ше 50,	2014
	_			thousands,				
Interest income:								
Interest and fees on loans receivable	\$	3,779	\$	3,689	\$	7,503	\$	7,315
Interest and fees on loans receivable  Interest on mortgage-backed and other securities	Ą	90	Φ	104	φ	184	Ψ	168
Other interest income		243		82		330		188
Total interest income		4,112		3,875		8,017		7,671
Total interest income		4,112		3,073		0,017		7,071
Interest expense:								
Interest on deposits		435		427		850		888
Interest on borrowings		536		533		1,067		1,070
Total interest expense		971		960		1,917		1,958
Net interest income before recapture of loan losses		3,141		2,915		6,100		5,713
Recapture of loan losses		750		500		1,500		1,582
Net interest income after recapture of loan losses		3,891		3,415		7,600		7,295
Non-interest income:								
Service charges		102		113		208		230
Net gain on sale of loans		380		113		514		230
Net loss on sale of REOs		(14)		(47)		314		(50)
		(14)		(47)		355		200
CDFI grant Other		24		(2)		555 58		200 17
Total non-interest income		492		64		1,135		397
1 otal non-interest income		492		04		1,133		391
Non-interest expense:								
Compensation and benefits		1,670		1,607		3,438		3,195
Occupancy expense, net		287		296		586		580
Information services		245		218		462		437
Professional services		208		239		478		663
Office services and supplies		79		94		160		196
FDIC assessments		95		176		175		350
REO		164		377		200		425
Corporate insurance		102		116		196		228
Other		374		297		581		567
Total non-interest expense		3,224		3,420		6,276		6,641
Income before income taxes		1,159		59		2,459		1,051
Income tax expense		6		_		8		3
Net income	\$	1,153	\$	59	\$	2,451	\$	1,048
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:								
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on securities								
available-for-sale	\$	(118)	\$	94	\$	(61)	\$	73
Income tax effect	φ	(110)	φ	) <del>+</del> -	φ	(01)	ф	-
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax		(118)		94		(61)		73
onici comprenensive meome (1088), net oi tax		(110)		74		(01)		13
Comprehensive income	\$	1,035	\$	153	\$	2,390	\$	1,121
Earnings per common share-basic	\$	0.04	\$	0.00	\$	0.08	\$	0.05
-								

Earnings per common share-diluted \$ 0.04 \$ 0.00 \$ 0.08 \$ 0.05

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ to\ unaudited\ consolidated\ financial\ statements.$ 

2

# BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

## **Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows**

## (Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:         Net income         \$ 2.451         \$ 1,048           Cash flows from operating activities:           Recapture of loan losses         (1.500)         (1.582)           Recapture of loan losses         (2.60)         (3.60)         (3.60)           Provision for losses on REOS         (2.60)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (2.62)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)         (3.00)		Six Months Ended June 30,	
Not income			
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:	Cash flows from operating activities:		
Recapture of loan losses         (1,500)         (1,82)           Provision for losses on REOs         126         340           Depreciation         117         116           Net amortization of deferred loan origination costs         167         7.5           Net amortization of premiums on mortgage-backed securities         30         22           Amortization of investment in affordable housing limited partnership         96         96           Stock-based compensation expense         1         11           Earnings on bank owned life insurance         (31,479)         -3           Originations of loans receivable held for sale         (14,781)            Net gain on sale of loans receivable held for sale         (14,781)            Net gain on sale of loans receivable held for sale         (14,781)            Net gain on sale of loans receivable held for sale         (14,781)            Net gain on adde of loans receivable held for sale         (16         (30)           Net gain on adde of loans receivable held for sale         166         (30)           Net gain of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (25           Net change in adex cere payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (28         (44)         33	Net income	\$ 2,451	\$ 1,048
Provision for losses on REOS	Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:		
Depenciation         117         116         7.55           Net amortization of deferred loan origination costs         167         7.55           Net amortization of premiums on mortgage-backed securities         30         22           Amortization of investment in affordable housing limited partnership         96         96           Stock-based compensation expense         1         11           Earnings on bank owned life insurance         (31,479)         -33           Originations of loans receivable held for sale         14,781         -5           Net gain on sales of loans receivable held for sale         14,781         -5           Net gain on sales of loans receivable held for sale         14,781         -5           Net gain on also of loans receivable held for sale         14,781         -5           Net gain on also of BEOS         50         -6           Net gain on also of REOS         50         -6           Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in accrued interest receivable         44         38           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         444         38           Net change in advance payments of taxes and insurance         444         38           Net change in loans receivable	Recapture of loan losses	(1,500)	(1,582)
Net amortization of deferred loan origination costs         167         75           Net amortization of premiums on mortgage-backed securities         30         22           Amortization of investment in affordable housing limited partnership         96         96           Stock-based compensation expense         1         1           Earnings on bank owned life insurance         (30)         (33)           Originations of loans receivable held for sale         (31,479)            Net gain on sale of loans         (514)            Net loss on sale of BEOs          (50)           Amortization of deferred gain on debt restructuring          (74)           Net close on sale of REOs          (74)           Net close on sale of REOs          (74)           Net close on sale of loans          (74)           Net loang in all of loans          (74)           Net loang in accrued interest receivable          (74)         (38)           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         255         756           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in loans receivable held for sale         (8,204)	Provision for losses on REOs	126	340
Net amortization of premiums on mortgage-backed securities   36   96   96   96   96   96   96   96	Depreciation	117	116
Annitization of investment in affordable housing limited partnership   96   96   50ck-based compensation expense	e		
Stock-based compensation expense			
Barnings on bank owned life insurance         (30)         (33)           Originations of loans receivable held for sale         (31,479)         -           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         (14,781)         -           Net gain on sale of loans         (514)         -           Net loss on sale of REOs         -         (50)           Amorization of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (74)           Stock-based compensation non-employee         -         25           Net change in accrued interest receivable         106         (30)           Net change in accrued interest receivable         106         (30)           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in oacrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net change in loans receivable held for sale         (48,205)         914           Net change in loans receivable held for sale         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         (8,204)         (17,459)           Principal reapyments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Principal rea	Amortization of investment in affordable housing limited partnership	96	
Originations of loans receivable held for sale         (31,479)		-	
Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         14,781         -           Net gain on sale of loans         (514)         -           Ket loss on sale of REOS         -         50           Amortization of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (74)           Stock-based compensation non-employee         -         (72)           Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         558         56           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         (44,75)         914           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         (8,204)         (17,459)           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         1,627         -           Proceds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         1,337         1,097           Purchases of Securities:         1,337         1,097           Purchase of Fills at the stock         1,527         -           Proceds from sales of REO		` '	(33)
Net gain on sale of loans         (514)         -           Net loss on sale of REOs         -         50           Amortization of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (74)           Stock-based compensation non-employee         -         25           Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         630           Net change in accrued restrest receivable         558         56           Net change in actrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash govided by (used in) operating activities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         44,25         -           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         8,204         1(7,459)           Proceeds from siles of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Proceeds from sales of Reso         1,337         1,097           Purchases         1,337         1,097           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Purchase of FILB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FILB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FILB stock	e	` ' '	-
Net loss on sale of REOs         -         50           Amortization of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (74)           Stock-based compensation non-employee         -         25           Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in other assets         558         56           Net change in other assets         (44)         38           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         (14,850)         9914           Cash flows from investing activities           Net change in loans receivable held for sale of the provided by (used in) operating activities         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale of the principal sale sale sale sale sale sale sale sa			-
Amortization of deferred gain on debt restructuring         -         (74)           Stock-based compensation non-employee         -         25           Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in other assets         558         56           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         225         756           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Available-for-sale securities:         166         -           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net change in deposits         14,285         326	e	(514)	-
Skock-based compensation non-employee         1-6         25           Net change in actrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in other assets         558         56           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         W         (14,850)         914           Cash flows from investing activities         W         (12,252)         756           Net change in loans receivable held for sale         44,725         2-2         2-2           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         2-2         2-2           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         2-2         2-2         10,459         3-2         2-2         10,459         3-2         2-2         10,459         3-2         2-2         10,459         3-2         2-2         10,459         3-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2         2-2 <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td>		-	
Net change in accrued interest receivable         166         (30)           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         (14,850)         914           Cash flows from investing activities:           Net change in loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Pricipal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Priceds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Priceds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         1,337         1,097           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         10,463           Proceads from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,9		-	
Net change in other assets         558         56           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         30         914           Cash flows from investing activities           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         (10,463)           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchase         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         (1,527)         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         4,48         (194)           Net change in deposits </td <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td>		-	
Net change in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance         (44)         38           Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         30         914           Cash flows from investing activities:           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         (10,463)           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         48         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Proceeds from filancing activities         14,285         326           Proceeds from filancing activities         21,000         8,000           Re			` '
Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities         225         756           Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities         (14,850)         914           Cash flows from investing activities:         Secondary of the part of the period cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         4,7459         914           Cash flows from investing activities:         Secondary of the part of the period cash and cash equivalents at end of the period cash and cash equivalents at end of the period cash and cash equivalents at end of the period cash flow information:         225         756           Cash flows from investing activities         (8,204)         (17,459)         914           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale and cash equivalents and end of sale and cash equivalents and end of sale and cash equivalents and end of sale and end of sale and end of sale and end end end of sale and end end of sale and end end of the period and end end end end end end end end end e			
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:         (14,850)         914           Cash flows from investing activities:         Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         (10,463)           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         621         2,219           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (1944)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities           Net change in deposits         14,285         36           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871			
Cash flows from investing activities:           Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Available-for-sale securities:         ****         ****           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities:           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Net change in loans receivable held for investment         (8,204)         (17,459)           Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         (10,463)           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Ca	Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	(14,850)	914
Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale         44,725         -           Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         (10,463)           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$1,661         \$34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash fl	Cash flows from investing activities:		
Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale         166         -           Available-for-sale securities:         -         1,337         1,097           Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (48)         (194)           Net cash from fine properties and equipment         (48)         (24,800)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$1,661         \$34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest <t< td=""><td>Net change in loans receivable held for investment</td><td>(8,204)</td><td>(17,459)</td></t<>	Net change in loans receivable held for investment	(8,204)	(17,459)
Available-for-sale securities:         Prepayments and amortizations       1,337       1,097         Purchases       -       (10,463)         Proceeds from sales of REO       621       2,219         Redemption of FHLB stock       1,527       -         Purchase of FHLB stock       (188)       -         Additions to office properties and equipment       (48)       (194)         Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities       39,936       (24,800)         Cash flows from financing activities:         Net change in deposits       14,285       326         Proceeds from FHLB advances       21,000       8,000         Repayments of FHLB advances       (29,500)       (8,000)         Net cash provided by financing activities       5,785       326         Net change in cash and cash equivalents       30,871       (23,560)         Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period       20,790       58,196         Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period       \$1,661       \$34,636         Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         Cash paid for interest       \$1,941       \$1,906	Proceeds from sales of loans receivable held for sale	44,725	-
Prepayments and amortizations         1,337         1,097           Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$ 51,661         \$ 34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906	Principal repayments on loans receivable held for sale	166	-
Purchases         -         (10,463)           Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities:         ***         ***           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$ 5,1661         \$ 34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906	Available-for-sale securities:		
Proceeds from sales of REO         621         2,219           Redemption of FHLB stock         1,527         -           Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities:         ***         ***           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$1,661         \$34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest         \$1,941         \$1,906	Prepayments and amortizations	1,337	1,097
Redemption of FHLB stock       1,527       -         Purchase of FHLB stock       (188)       -         Additions to office properties and equipment       (48)       (194)         Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities       39,936       (24,800)         Cash flows from financing activities:         Net change in deposits       14,285       326         Proceeds from FHLB advances       21,000       8,000         Repayments of FHLB advances       (29,500)       (8,000)         Net cash provided by financing activities       5,785       326         Net change in cash and cash equivalents       30,871       (23,560)         Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period       20,790       58,196         Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period       \$ 51,661       \$ 34,636         Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         Cash paid for interest       \$ 1,941       \$ 1,906		-	` ' '
Purchase of FHLB stock         (188)         -           Additions to office properties and equipment         (48)         (194)           Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         39,936         (24,800)           Cash flows from financing activities:           Net change in deposits         14,285         326           Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$ 51,661         \$ 34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906			2,219
Additions to office properties and equipment Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  Cash flows from financing activities:  Net change in deposits Proceeds from FHLB advances Repayments of FHLB advances Repayments of FHLB advances Net cash provided by financing activities  Net change in cash and cash equivalents  Net change in cash and cash equivalents Sash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  1,941 1,946	Redemption of FHLB stock	1,527	-
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities39,936(24,800)Cash flows from financing activities:39,936(24,800)Net change in deposits14,285326Proceeds from FHLB advances21,0008,000Repayments of FHLB advances(29,500)(8,000)Net cash provided by financing activities5,785326Net change in cash and cash equivalents30,871(23,560)Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period20,79058,196Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period\$ 51,661\$ 34,636Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:Cash paid for interest\$ 1,941\$ 1,906		` /	-
Cash flows from financing activities:         Net change in deposits       14,285       326         Proceeds from FHLB advances       21,000       8,000         Repayments of FHLB advances       (29,500)       (8,000)         Net cash provided by financing activities       5,785       326         Net change in cash and cash equivalents       30,871       (23,560)         Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period       20,790       58,196         Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period       \$ 51,661       \$ 34,636         Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         Cash paid for interest       \$ 1,941       \$ 1,906		` '	` /
Net change in deposits       14,285       326         Proceeds from FHLB advances       21,000       8,000         Repayments of FHLB advances       (29,500)       (8,000)         Net cash provided by financing activities       5,785       326         Net change in cash and cash equivalents       30,871       (23,560)         Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period       20,790       58,196         Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period       \$ 51,661       \$ 34,636         Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         Cash paid for interest       \$ 1,941       \$ 1,906	Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	39,936	(24,800)
Proceeds from FHLB advances         21,000         8,000           Repayments of FHLB advances         (29,500)         (8,000)           Net cash provided by financing activities         5,785         326           Net change in cash and cash equivalents         30,871         (23,560)           Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period         20,790         58,196           Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period         \$ 51,661         \$ 34,636           Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:           Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906	Cash flows from financing activities:		
Repayments of FHLB advances(29,500)(8,000)Net cash provided by financing activities5,785326Net change in cash and cash equivalents30,871(23,560)Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period20,79058,196Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period\$ 51,661\$ 34,636Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:Cash paid for interest\$ 1,941\$ 1,906	Net change in deposits	14,285	
Net cash provided by financing activities5,785326Net change in cash and cash equivalents30,871(23,560)Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period20,79058,196Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period\$ 51,661\$ 34,636Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:Cash paid for interest\$ 1,941\$ 1,906	Proceeds from FHLB advances	21,000	8,000
Net change in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  \$ 1,941 \$ 1,906	Repayments of FHLB advances	(29,500)	(8,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest	Net cash provided by financing activities	5,785	326
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest	Net change in cash and cash equivalents	30,871	(23,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period \$ 51,661 \$ 34,636  Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest \$ 1,941 \$ 1,906			\ ' '
Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906		\$ 51,661	\$ 34,636
Cash paid for interest         \$ 1,941         \$ 1,906	Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:		
	**	\$ 1,941	\$ 1,906
	Cash paid for income taxes	' '	

## Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:

* *	8 8		
Transfers of loans receivable held	for investment to REO	\$ 843	\$ 1,845
Transfers of loans receivable held	for investment to loans receivable held for sale	\$ 90,183	\$ -
Issuance of common stock for serv	vices	\$ _	\$ 25

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

June 30, 2015

### **NOTE (1)** Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include Broadway Financial Corporation (the Company ) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Broadway Federal Bank, f.s.b. (the Bank ). Also included in the unaudited consolidated financial statements is Broadway Service Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and with the instructions for quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. These unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include all disclosures associated with the Company's consolidated annual financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and, accordingly, should be read in conjunction with such audited consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (all of which are normal and recurring in nature) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2015.

Some items in the consolidated financial statements for the prior period were reclassified to conform to the current presentation. Reclassifications had no effect on prior period consolidated net income or loss or stockholders equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-01, Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting for Investments in Qualified Affordable Housing Projects . ASU 2014-01 permits a reporting entity to make an accounting policy election to account for its investments in affordable housing projects using the proportional amortization method if certain conditions are met. Under the proportional amortization method, an entity amortizes the initial cost of the investment in proportion to the amount of tax credits and other tax benefits received and recognizes the net investment performance in the income statement as a component of income tax expense or benefit. ASU 2014-01 becomes effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, with early adoption permitted. The provisions of ASU 2014-01 must be applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Adopting this standard did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40) - Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity  $\,$ s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern  $\,$ . ASU 2014-15 incorporates into U.S. GAAP a requirement that

management complete a going concern evaluation similar to that performed by an entity s external auditor. Under the new guidance, management will be required to perform interim and annual assessments of an entity s ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the date of issuance of the entity s financial statements. Further, an entity must provide certain disclosures if there is substantial doubt about the entity s ability to continue as a going concern. ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, Income Statement - Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20) - Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items . ASU 2015-01 eliminates from U.S. GAAP the concept of extraordinary items, which, among other things, required an entity to segregate extraordinary items considered to be unusual and infrequent from the results of ordinary operations and show the item separately in the income statement, net of tax, after income from continuing operations. ASU 2015-01 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2015, and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs . Under ASU 2015-03, the Company will present debt issuance costs in the balance sheet as a reduction from the related debt liability rather than as an asset. Amortization of such costs will continue to be reported as interest expense. ASU 2015-03 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2015, and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. Retrospective adoption is required. Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

## **NOTE (2)** Earnings Per Share of Common Stock

Basic earnings per share of common stock is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share of common stock is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period, increased for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents.

The following table shows how the Company computed basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

	F	For the three months ended June 30, 2015 2014		ee months ended June 30, For the six months of 2014 2015				June 30, 2014
		2010	(Dol	lars in thousands,	except			2011
Basic Net income	\$	1,153	\$	59	\$	2,451	\$	1,048
Weighted average common shares outstanding		29,076,708		20,243,948		29,076,708		20,234,368
Earnings per common share - basic	\$	0.04	\$	0.00	\$	0.08	\$	0.05
<b>Diluted</b> Net income	\$	1,153	\$	59	\$	2,451	\$	1,048
Weighted average common shares outstanding Add: dilutive effects of assumed exercises of stock		29,076,708		20,243,948		29,076,708		20,234,368
options Weighted average common shares - fully dilutive		29,076,708		20,243,948		29,076,708		20,234,368
Earnings per common share - diluted	\$	0.04	\$	0.00	\$	0.08	\$	0.05

Stock options for 93,750 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per common share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 because they were anti-dilutive.

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

# NOTE (3) Securities

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of the available-for-sale investment securities portfolios at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 and the corresponding amounts of unrealized gains and losses which are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

	Amort	ized Cost	Unre	ross ealized ains (In thous	Los	alized	Fai	ir Value
June 30, 2015:								
Residential mortgage-backed	\$	13,204	\$	470	\$	-	\$	13,674
U.S. Government and federal agency		1,939		34		-		1,973
Total available-for-sale securities	\$	15,143	\$	504	\$	-	\$	15,647
December 31, 2014:								
Residential mortgage-backed	\$	14,578	\$	540	\$	-	\$	15,118
U.S. Government and federal agency		1,932		25		-		1,957
Total available-for-sale securities	\$	16,510	\$	565	\$	-	\$	17,075

At June 30, 2015, the Bank s investment portfolio had an estimated remaining life of 4.6 years. The amortized cost and fair value of the investment securities portfolio are shown by contractual maturity at June 30, 2015. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities if borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily residential mortgage-backed securities, are shown separately.

	Available-for-Sale						
Maturity	Amort	tized Cost	Fai	r Value			
	(In thousands)						
Within one year	\$	-	\$	-			
One to five years		1,939		1,973			
Five to ten years		-		-			
Beyond ten years		-		-			
Residential mortgage-backed		13,204		13,674			
Total	\$	15,143	\$	15,647			

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, securities pledged to secure public deposits had a carrying amount of \$783 thousand and \$1.2 million, respectively. At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than the U.S. Government and its agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of stockholders equity.

There were no sales of securities during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

### **NOTE (4)** Loans Receivable Held for Sale

Loans receivable held for sale at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 totaled \$82.0 million and \$19.5 million, respectively, and consisted of multi-family loans. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, multi-family loans originated for sale totaled \$18.9 million and \$31.5 million, respectively. During the second quarter of 2015, in order to comply with regulatory loan concentration guidelines, the Bank transferred \$90.2 million of performing multi-family loans from held for investment to held for sale.

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, loan sales totaled \$46.8 million and \$59.0 million, respectively.

# NOTE (5) Loans Receivable Held for Investment

Loans at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:

	June 30	, 2015 (In thous	December sands)	31, 2014
Real estate:				
Single family	\$	34,200	\$	39,792
Multi-family		103,947		171,792
Commercial real estate		12,979		16,722
Church		49,729		54,599
Construction		366		387
Commercial other		252		262
Consumer		4		9
Gross loans receivable before deferred loan costs and premiums		201,477		283,563
Unamortized net deferred loan costs and premiums		600		1,545
Gross loans receivable		202,077		285,108
Allowance for loan losses		(6,923)		(8,465)
Loans receivable, net	\$	195,154	\$	276,643

The following tables present the activity in the allowance for loan losses by loan type for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Three Month	s Ended Jur	ie 30, 2015
-------------	-------------	-------------

								,	-				
	ingle amily	Multi- amily	Com	al Estate imercial l estate	C	Church	Constru	ıction		mercial other	Con	sumer	Total
	•	•				(In thou	(shnes						
Beginning balance	\$ 1,164	\$ 2,741	\$	436	\$	3,314	\$	4	\$	11	\$	1	\$ 7,671
Provision for (recapture													
of) loan losses	(11)	(896)		(32)		189		-		1		(1)	(750)
Recoveries	-	-		-		5		-		-		-	5
Loans charged off	(3)	-		-		-		-		-		-	(3)
Ending balance	\$ 1,150	\$ 1,845	\$	404	\$	3,508	\$	4	\$	12	\$	-	\$ 6,923

Six Months Ended June 30, 2015

**Real Estate** 

Edgar Filing: BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORP \DE\ - Form 10-Q

	S	ingle	N	Aulti-	Cor	nmercial							
	fa	nmily	f	family		al estate	(	Church (In thou	 truction	 mercial other	Con	nsumer	Total
Beginning balance	\$	1,174	\$	2,726	\$	496	\$	4,047	\$ 7	\$ 12	\$	3	\$ 8,465
Provision for (recapture													
of) loan losses		(21)		(881)		(92)		(500)	(3)	-		(3)	(1,500)
Recoveries		-		-		-		11	-	-		-	11
Loans charged off		(3)		-		-		(50)	-	-		-	(53)
Ending balance	\$	1,150	\$	1,845	\$	404	\$	3,508	\$ 4	\$ 12	\$	-	\$ 6,923

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

Three	Months	Ended	Inno	30	2014
i iiree	VIOLLIIS	rmaea	June	JU.	2014

						1 111	CC 111	onins Lina	ca June 30,	201	7				
		Single Multi- family family				eal Estate mmercial	_					mercial	~		
	fa	amily	fa	amily	re	eal estate	(	Church	Construct	ion	- 0	ther	Cons	sumer	Total
								(In thous	sands)						
Beginning balance	\$	1,874	\$	2,107	\$	1,212	\$	4,867	\$	7	\$	20	\$	4	\$ 10,091
Provision for (recapture															
of) loan losses		65		197		(131)		(629)		-		(2)		-	(500)
Recoveries		-		-		-		13		-		1		-	14
Loans charged off		(90)		-		-		(139)		-		-		-	(229)
Ending balance	\$	1,849	\$	2,304	\$	1,081	\$	4,112	\$	7	\$	19	\$	4	\$ 9,376

### Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

	S	Single	N	Aulti-		teal Estate ommercial							
	fa	family family		amily	r	eal estate	(	Church (In thous	 ruction	 mmercial other	Co	nsumer	Total
Beginning balance Provision for (recapture	\$	1,930	\$	1,726	\$	1,473	\$	4,949	\$ 7	\$ 55	\$	6	\$ 10,146
of) loan losses		10		578		(383)		(684)	-	(1,101)		(2)	(1,582)
Recoveries		2		-		-		169	-	1,083		-	1,254
Loans charged off		(93)		-		(9)		(322)	-	(18)		-	(442)
Ending balance	\$	1,849	\$	2,304	\$	1,081	\$	4,112	\$ 7	\$ 19	\$	4	\$ 9,376

The following tables present the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment (unpaid contractual principal balance less charge-offs, less interest applied to principal, plus unamortized deferred costs and premiums) by loan type and based on impairment method as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

			Doo	l Estate		June 30,	2015					
	Single amily	Multi- family	Cor	nmercial al estate	C	Church (In thous		truction	 mercial other	Con	sumer	Total
Allowance for loan losses: Ending allowance balance attributable to loans:												
Individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 138	\$ 4	\$	95	\$	1,153	\$	-	\$ 10	\$	-	\$ 1,400
Collectively evaluated for impairment Total ending allowance	1,012	1,841		309		2,355		4	2		-	5,523
balance Loans:	\$ 1,150	\$ 1,845	\$	404	\$	3,508	\$	4	\$ 12	\$	-	\$ 6,923
Loans individually evaluated for impairment Loans collectively evaluated	\$ 1,337	\$ 1,469	\$	2,788	\$	13,385	\$	-	\$ 80	\$	-	\$ 19,059
for impairment	33,085	103,344		10,200		35,847		366	172		4	183,018

Total ending loans balance \$ 34,422 \$ 104,813 \$ 12,988 \$ 49,232 \$ 366 \$ 252 \$ 4 \$ 202,077

8

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

					_		I	December	31, 2014	ļ						
		Single family		Multi- family	Cor	al Estate nmercial al estate	C	Church (In thous		truction		nmercial other	Cons	sumer		Total
Allowance for loan									,							
losses: Ending allowance balance attributable to loans:																
Individually evaluated for impairment	\$	132	\$	115	\$	161	\$	1,088	\$	_	\$	10	\$	-	\$	1,506
Collectively evaluated for impairment		1,042		2,611		335		2,959		7		2		3		6,959
Total ending allowance																
balance	\$	1,174	\$	2,726	\$	496	\$	4,047	\$	7	\$	12	\$	3	\$	8,465
Loans:																
Loans individually	\$	1,414	\$	2,765	\$	4,636	\$	14,602	\$		\$	102	\$		\$	23,519
evaluated for impairment Loans collectively	Ф	1,414	Ф	2,703	Ф	4,030	Ф	14,002	Ф	-	Ф	102	Ф	-	Ф	23,319
evaluated for impairment		38,641		170,785		12,083		39,525		387		159		9		261,589
Total ending loans balance	\$	40,055	\$	173,550	\$	16,719	\$	54,127	\$	387	\$	261	\$	9	\$	285,108

The following table presents information related to loans individually evaluated for impairment by loan type as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

			June 3	0, 2015	4.11				Decembe	r 31, 2014	A 11	
	Unp Princ Bala	cipal		orded tment	Allow for L Los Alloc	oan ses	Prin Bala	oaid cipal ance		orded tment	Allow for L Los Alloc	oan ses
With no related allowance						`	ĺ					
recorded:												
Single family	\$	1,432	\$	667	\$	-	\$	1,448	\$	736	\$	-
Multi-family		915		798		-		1,384		1,263		-
Commercial real estate		1,862		1,081		-		4,836		1,174		-
Church		5,929		3,984		-		6,234		4,350		-
Commercial - other		13		13		-		34		34		-
With an allowance recorded:												
Single family		670		670		138		678		678		132
Multi-family		671		671		4		1,541		1,502		115
Commercial real estate		1,707		1,707		95		3,473		3,462		161
Church		9,790		9,401		1,153		10,751		10,252		1,088
Commercial -other		67		67		10		68		68		10
Total	\$	23,056	\$	19,059	\$	1,400	\$	30,447	\$	23,519	\$	1,506

The recorded investment in loans excludes accrued interest receivable due to immateriality. For purposes of this disclosure, the unpaid principal balance is not reduced for net charge-offs.

### **BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY**

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

The following tables present the monthly average of loans individually evaluated for impairment by loan type and the related interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

	Tl	ree Months Ei	nded June 30,	2015	9	Six Months Ended	June 30, 201	5
			Cash	Basis			Cash	Basis
	A	verage	Int	erest	Av	erage	Inte	rest
	Re	corded	Inc	come	Rec	orded	Inco	me
	Inv	Investment		gnized	Inve	stment	Recog	nized
				(In th	ousands)			
Single family	\$	1,346	\$	8	\$	1,364	\$	15
Multi-family		1,974		99		2,305		115
Commercial real estate		2,897		55		3,639		161
Church		13,695		144		14,191		286
Commercial -other		82		1		89		3
Total	\$	19,994	\$	307	\$	21,588	\$	580

	Th	ree Months En	ded June 30,	2014	8	Six Months Ended	June 30, 201	4
			Cash	Basis			Cash l	Basis
	A	verage	Int	erest	Av	erage	Inte	rest
	Re	corded	Inc	come	Rec	orded	Inco	me
	Inv	Investment		gnized	Inve	stment	Recog	nized
				(In the	ousands)			
Single family	\$	2,930	\$	18	\$	2,977	\$	35
Multi-family		3,543		23		3,722		46
Commercial real estate		4,783		96		4,828		189
Church		17,110		192		18,557		333
Commercial -other		130		2		137		5
Total	\$	28,496	\$	331	\$	30,221	\$	608

Cash-basis interest income recognized represents cash received for interest payments on accruing impaired loans. Interest payments collected on non-accrual loans are characterized as payments of principal rather than payments of the outstanding accrued interest on the loans until the remaining principal on the non-accrual loans is considered to be fully collectible. Foregone interest income that would have been recognized had loans performed in accordance with their original terms amounted to \$166 thousand and \$328 thousand for the three months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and \$450 thousand and \$821 thousand for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and were not included in the consolidated results of operations.

The following tables present the aging of the recorded investment in past due loans as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 by loan type:

		June 30, 2015		
30-59	60-89	Greater than	Total	Current
Days	Days	90 Days	Past Due	

Edgar Filing: BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORP \DE\ - Form 10-Q

	Pas	t Due	Pas	st Due	t Due nousands)		
Loans receivable held for							
investment:							
Single family	\$	82	\$	-	\$ -	\$ 82	\$ 34,340
Multi-family		341		-	457	798	104,015
Commercial real estate		-		-	-	-	12,988
Church		395		204	258	857	48,375
Construction		-		-	-	-	366
Commercial - other		-		-	-	-	252
Consumer		-		-	-	-	4
Total	\$	818	\$	204	\$ 715	\$ 1,737	\$ 200,340

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

	]	30-59 Days st Due	D	0-89 Days st Due	Grea 90 Pas	per 31, 2014 ter than Days at Due nousands)	Total ast Due	(	Current
Loans receivable held for									
investment:									
Single family	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	40,055
Multi-family		455		-		-	455		173,095
Commercial real estate		856		-		-	856		15,863
Church		-		180		987	1,167		52,960
Construction		-		-		-	-		387
Commercial - other		34		-		-	34		227
Consumer		-		-		-	-		9
Total	\$	1,345	\$	180	\$	987	\$ 2,512	\$	282,596

The following table presents the recorded investment in non-accrual loans by loan type as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

	June	Decemb	December 31, 2014		
		(In tho	usands)		
Loans receivable held for investment:					
Single family	\$	667	\$	736	
Multi-family		798		1,618	
Commercial real estate		1,081		1,174	
Church		4,109		5,232	
Commercial - other		80		102	
Total non-accrual loans	\$	6,735	\$	8,862	

There were no loans 90 days or more delinquent that were accruing interest as of June 30, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

### **Troubled Debt Restructurings**

At June 30, 2015, loans classified as troubled debt restructurings ( TDRs ) totaled \$17.4 million, of which \$5.1 million were included in non-accrual loans and \$12.3 million were on accrual status. At December 31, 2014, loans classified as TDRs totaled \$20.2 million, of which \$5.5 million were included in non-accrual loans and \$14.7 million were on accrual status. The Company has allocated \$1.4 million and \$1.3 million of specific reserves for accruing TDRs as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. TDRs on accrual status are comprised of loans that were accruing at the time of restructuring or loans that have complied with the terms of their restructured agreements for a satisfactory period of time, and for which the Bank anticipates full repayment of both principal and interest. TDRs that are on non-accrual status can be returned to accrual status after a period of sustained performance, generally determined to be six months of timely payments as modified. A well-documented credit analysis that supports a return to accrual status based on the borrower s financial condition and prospects for

repayment under the revised terms is also required. As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had no commitment to lend additional amounts to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as TDRs. No loans were modified during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

### **Credit Quality Indicators**

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. For single family residential, consumer and other smaller balance homogenous loans, a credit grade is established at inception, and generally only adjusted based on performance. Information about payment status is disclosed elsewhere herein. The Company analyzes all other loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk. This analysis is performed at least on a quarterly basis. The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:

- *Watch.* Loans classified as watch exhibit weaknesses that could threaten the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligors. Watch graded loans are generally performing and are not more than 59 days past due. A watch rating is used when a material deficiency exists but correction is anticipated within an acceptable time frame.
- **Special Mention.** Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institution s credit position at some future date.
- Substandard. Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
- **Doubtful.** Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.
- Loss. Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that to continue to carry the loan as an active asset is no longer warranted.

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above described process are considered to be pass rated loans. Pass rated loans are generally well protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or by the value of the underlying collateral. Pass rated loans are not more than 59 days past due and are generally performing in accordance with the loan terms. Based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk category of loans by loan type as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is as follows:

					June 30, 20	015					
	Pass	$\mathbf{W}$	atch	Speci	al Mention	Subs	standard	Dou	btful	I	Loss
					(In thousar	nds)					
Single family	\$ 30,320	\$	-	\$	3,431	\$	671	\$	-	\$	-
Multi-family	102,440		-		964		1,409		-		-
Commercial real estate	10,200		-		-		2,788		-		-
Church	37,964		782		1,443		9,043		-		-
Construction	366		-		-		-		-		-
Commercial - other	172		-		-		67		13		-
Consumer	4		-		-		-		-		-
Total	\$ 181,466	\$	782	\$	5,838	\$	13,978	\$	13	\$	-
					December 31	, 2014					
	Pass	W	atch	Speci	al Mention	Subs	standard	Dou	btful	I	Loss
				-	(In thousar	nds)					
Single family	\$ 35,850	\$	-	\$	3,465	\$	740	\$	-	\$	-
Multi-family	170,700		-		613		2,237		-		-
Commercial real estate	13,218		-		284		3,217		-		-
Church	41,716		-		2,202		10,209		-		-
Construction	387		-		-		-		-		-
Commercial - other	159		-		-		102		-		-
Consumer	9		-		-		-		-		-
Total	\$ 262,039	\$	-	\$	6,564	\$	16,505	\$	-	\$	-

## **NOTE (6)** Junior Subordinated Debentures

On March 17, 2004, the Company issued \$6.0 million of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the Debentures) in a private placement to a trust that was capitalized to purchase subordinated debt and preferred stock of multiple community banks. Interest on the Debentures is payable quarterly at a rate per annum equal to the 3-Month LIBOR plus 2.54%. The interest rate is determined as of each March 17, June 17, September 17, and December 17, and was 2.82% at June 30, 2015. On October 16, 2014, the Company made payments of \$900 thousand of principal on Debentures, executed a Supplemental Indenture for the Debentures that extended the maturity of the Debentures to March 17, 2024, and modified the payment terms of the remaining \$5.1 million principal amount thereof. The modified terms of the Debentures require quarterly payments of interest only for the next five years at the original rate of 3-Month LIBOR plus 2.54%. Starting in June 2019, the Company will be required to make quarterly payments of equal amounts of principal, plus interest, until the Debentures are fully amortized on March 17, 2024. The Debentures may be called for redemption at any time by the Company.

### **Table of Contents**

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

### **NOTE (7)** Fair Value

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value:

The fair values of securities available-for-sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1 inputs) or matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities, but rather by relying on the securities relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2 inputs).

The fair value of impaired loans that are collateral dependent is generally based upon the fair value of the collateral which is obtained from recent real estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are usually significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. Impaired loans are evaluated on a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly.

Assets acquired through or by transfer in lieu of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. These assets are subsequently accounted for at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals which are updated every nine months. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are usually significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. Real estate owned properties are evaluated on a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly.

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

Appraisals for collateral-dependent impaired loans and real estate owned are performed by certified general appraisers (for commercial properties) or certified residential appraisers (for residential properties) whose qualifications and licenses have been reviewed and verified by the Company. Once received, an independent third-party licensed appraiser reviews the appraisals for accuracy and reasonableness, reviewing the assumptions and approaches utilized in the appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair value in comparison with independent data sources such as recent market data or industry-wide statistics.

### **Assets Measured on a Recurring Basis**

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

	Quoted Pin Activ Markets Identic Assets (Level	ve for al	Fair Valu Signif Oth Obser Inp (Leve	icant er vable uts	Significa Unobserva Inputs (Level 3	nt ible	Tot	tal
Assets:				(III tilous	sanus)			
Securities available-for-sale - residential mortgage-backed Securities available-for-sale - U.S. Government and	\$	-	\$	13,674	\$	-	\$	13,674
federal agency		1,973		-		-		1,973
			Fair Value I	Measurement	s at December	31, 2014		
	Quoted Prin Activ Markets Identic Assets (Level	ve for al	Signif Oth Obser Inp (Leve	ier vable uts	Significa Unobserva Inputs (Level 3	able	Tot	tal
Assets:				(III tilous	sanus)			
Securities available-for-sale - residential	ф		Φ.	15.110	Ф		ф	17.116
mortgage-backed Securities available-for-sale - U.S. Government and	\$	-	\$	15,118	\$	-	\$	15,118
federal agency		1,957		-		-		1,957

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

## Assets Measured on a Non-Recurring Basis

Assets are considered to be reflected at fair value on a non-recurring basis if the fair value measurement of the instrument does not necessarily result in a change in the amount recorded on the balance sheet. Generally, a non-recurring valuation is the result of the application of other accounting pronouncements that require assets to be assessed for impairment or recorded at the lower of cost or fair value.

The following table provides information regarding the carrying values of our assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at the dates indicated. The fair value measurement for all of these assets falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, except for loans receivable held for sale which is a Level 2 classification.

15

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

	June 30, 2015 (In thousands	December 31, 2014
Assets:		
Impaired loans carried at fair value of collateral:		
Single family	504	549
Multi-family	-	323
Commercial real estate	1,081	1,177
Church	2,794	3,779
Real estate owned:		
Church	2,178	2,082

The following tables present quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements for financial instruments measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

		June 30	_	
	Fair Value	Valuation Technique(s) (Dollars in	Unobservable Input(s) thousands)	Range (Weighted Average)
Impaired loans single family	\$ 504	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-9% to -3% (-6%)
Impaired loans commercial real estate	1,081	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-1% to 1% (-1%)
		Income approach	Capitalization rate	4.75% to 7.25% (6.58%)
Impaired loans church	2,794	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-12% to 14% (4%)
Real estate owned church	2,178	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	2% to 29% (10%)
		Income approach	Capitalization rate	6.50%

# BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

## **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)**

				December	31, 2014	_
			ue	Valuation Technique(s) (Dollars in	Unobservable Input(s) thousands)	Range (Weighted Average)
Impaired loans	single family	\$	549	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-1% to 9% (-4%)
Impaired loans	multi-family		323	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-18%
				Income approach	Capitalization rate	7%
Impaired loans	commercial real estate		1,177	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	0% to 1% (0%)
				Income approach	Capitalization rate	5% to 7.25% (6.64%)
Impaired loans	church		3,779	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-12% to 18% (5%)
				Income approach	Capitalization rate	6%
Real estate owner	ed church		2,082	Sales comparison approach	Adjustment for differences between the comparable sales	-1% to 2% (0%)
			17			

## BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

## **Fair Values of Financial Instruments**

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments, at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:

			Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2015									
	Carrying Value		Level 1		Level 2 (In thousands)		Level 3		Total			
Financial Assets:												
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	51,661	\$	51,661	\$	-	\$	-	\$	51,661		
Securities available-for-sale		15,647		1,973		13,674		-		15,647		
Loans receivable held for sale		81,985		-		82,637		-		82,637		
Loans receivable held for investment		195,154		-		-	195	5,405		195,405		
Accrued interest receivable		1,050		6		94		950		1,050		
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		2,915		2,915		-		-		2,915		
Financial Liabilities:												
Deposits	\$	232,152	\$	-	\$	224,169	\$	-	\$	224,169		
Federal Home Loan Bank advances		77,500		-		79,447		-		79,447		
Junior subordinated debentures		5,100		-		-	3	3,025		3,025		
Accrued interest payable		43		0		38		5		43		

			Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014									
	Carrying Value				• 0		Level 1 Level 2 (In thousands)		Level 3		Total	
Financial Assets:												
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	20,790	\$	20,790	\$	-	\$	-	\$	20,790		
Securities available-for-sale		17,075		1,957		15,118		-		17,075		
Loans receivable held for sale		19,481		-		19,679		-		19,679		
Loans receivable held for investment		276,643		-		-	277	7,000		277,000		
Accrued interest receivable		1,216		6		88	1	,122		1,216		
Federal Home Loan Bank stock		4,254		4,254		-		-		4,254		
Financial Liabilities:												
Deposits	\$	217,867	\$	-	\$	210,181	\$	-	\$	210,181		
Federal Home Loan Bank advances		86,000		-		88,246		-		88,246		
Junior subordinated debentures		5,100		_		-	2	2,034		2,034		
Accrued interest payable		69		-		39		30		69		

The methods and assumptions, not previously presented, used to estimate fair values are described as follows:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair values and are classified as Level 1.
(b) Loans Receivable Held for Sale
The Company s loans receivable held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The fair value of loans receivable held for sale is determined by pricing for comparable assets or by outstanding commitments from third party investors, resulting in a Level 2 classification.
18

## Table of Contents

### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

(c) Loans Receivable Held for Investment
Fair values of loans, excluding loans receivable held for sale, are estimated as follows: For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values resulting in a Level 3 classification. Fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality resulting in a Level 3 classification. Impaired loans are valued at the lower of cost or fair value as described previously. The methods utilized to estimate the fair value of loans do not necessarily represent an exit price.
(d) FHLB Stock
The carrying value of FHLB stock approximates its fair value as the shares can only be redeemed by the FHLB at par.
(e) Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable
The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable/payable approximate their fair value and are classified the same as the related asset.
(f) Deposits
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, passbook savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amount) resulting in Level 2 classification. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using discounted cash flow calculations that apply interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits resulting in a Level 2 classification.
(g) Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

The fair values of the Federal Home Loan Bank advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in a Level 2 classification.

### (h) Junior Subordinated Debentures

The fair values of the Debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in a Level 3 classification.

#### NOTE (8) Stock-based Compensation

In 2008, the Company adopted the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan ( 2008 LTIP ), which was approved by its stockholders. The 2008 LTIP permits the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, full value awards and cash incentive awards to the Company s non-employee directors and certain officers and employees for up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company s common stock at the date of grant; the option awards have vesting periods ranging from immediate vesting to 5 years and have 10-year contractual terms.

No options were granted during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. The Company recorded no stock-based compensation expense during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, compared to \$11 thousand and \$22 thousand of stock-based compensation expense recorded during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014.

19

#### Table of Contents

#### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)** 

#### **NOTE (9)** Regulatory Matters

Effective September 9, 2010, the Company and the Bank agreed to the issuance of cease and desist orders (the Orders ) by the Office of Thrift Supervision, which was succeeded by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC). The Order applicable to the Company prohibits the Company from paying dividends to its stockholders without the prior written approval of the FRB, which is now the federal regulator for savings and loan holding companies. In addition, the Company is not permitted to incur, issue, renew, repurchase, make payments on or increase any debt or redeem any capital stock without prior notice to and receipt of written notice of non-objection from the FRB.

Effective October 30, 2013, the Bank entered into a Consent Order with the OCC, which superseded the Order applicable to the Bank. The Bank s capital requirements are administered by the OCC and involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the OCC. Failure to meet capital requirements can result in regulatory action.

As part of the Consent Order, the Bank is required to maintain a Tier 1 Leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets) of at least 9% and a Total Capital ratio (Total capital to risk-weighted assets) of at least 13%, both of which ratios are greater than the respective 4% and 8% levels for such ratios that are generally required under OCC regulations.

The Federal Reserve and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation approved final capital rules in July 2013 that substantially amend the existing capital rules for banks. These new rules reflect, in part, certain standards initially adopted by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in December 2010 (which standards are commonly referred to as Basel III ) as well as requirements contemplated by the Dodd-Frank Act.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2015, the Bank became subject to the Basel III capital requirements, including the standardized approach for calculating risk-weighted assets in accordance with subpart D of the final capital rule. The final rules revise the definition and calculation of Tier 1 capital, Total capital, and include a new Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital primarily includes common shareholders—equity less certain deductions for goodwill and other intangibles, net of related taxes, MSRs and related deferred taxes that arise from tax loss and credit carryforwards. Tier 1 capital is primarily comprised of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, perpetual preferred stock and certain qualifying capital instruments that are subject to phase-out from Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital primarily includes qualifying subordinated debt and qualifying ALLL.

The new capital rules include a new Common Equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets minimum ratio of 4.5%, raise the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets from 4.0% to 6.0%, require a minimum ratio of Total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%, and require a minimum Tier 1 Leverage ratio of 4.0%. A new capital conservation buffer is also established above the regulatory minimum capital requirements. This capital conservation buffer will be phased in beginning January 1, 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and will increase each subsequent year by an additional 0.625% until reaching its final level of 2.5% on January 1, 2019. An institution that does not meet the conservation buffer will be subject to restrictions on certain activities, including payment of dividends, stock repurchases, and discretionary bonuses to executive officers.

The Bank met the minimum capital requirements under the Consent Order at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Actual and required capital amounts and ratios at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, together with the higher capital requirements that the Bank is required to meet under the Consent Order applicable to it, are presented below.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

					Capita	al	
			Required Capital Ad		Requiren under Co		
	Actua	al	Purpos		Order		
	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	
			(Dollars in the	ousands)			
June 30, 2015:							
Tier 1 Leverage	\$ 42,578	11.89%	\$ 14,323	4.00%	\$ 32,227	9.00%	
Common Equity Tier 1	\$ 42,578	17.87%	\$ 10,723	4.50%	N/A	N/A	
Tier 1	\$ 42,578	17.87%	\$ 14,297	6.00%	N/A	N/A	
Total Capital	\$ 45,606	19.14%	\$ 19,063	8.00%	\$ 30,978	13.00%	
December 31, 2014:							
Tier 1 Leverage	\$ 39,773	11.34%	\$ 14,028	4.00%	\$ 31,562	9.00%	
Tier 1	\$ 39,773	16.41%	\$ 9,695	4.00%	N/A	N/A	
Total Capital	\$ 42,870	17.69%	\$ 19,390	8.00%	\$ 31,508	13.00%	

#### NOTE (10) Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes. Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management evaluates both positive and negative evidence, including the existence of cumulative losses in the current year and the prior two years, the amount of taxes paid in available carry-back years, the forecasts of future income and tax planning strategies. This analysis is updated quarterly. Based on this analysis, the Company determined that a valuation allowance of \$7.9 million was required as of June 30, 2015, resulting in \$0 net deferred tax assets. The Company recorded a valuation allowance of \$8.8 million and \$0 net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014. The decreases in the valuation allowance for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 were \$387 thousand and \$877 thousand, respectively.

<b>7D 1</b>	1			c.	$\sim$			
Tal	٦I	$\boldsymbol{e}$	$\cap$ 1	1		۱n	tei	ntc

#### ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is intended to provide a reader of our financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect our future results. Our MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in Part I Item 1, Financial Statements, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

#### Overview

Total assets increased by \$8.3 million during the six months ended June 30, 2015, primarily reflecting an increase of \$30.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and a net decrease of \$19.0 million in loans receivable, including loans held for sale, as we completed a bulk loan sale of approximately \$45.0 million in June 2015 in order to comply with regulatory loan concentration guidelines. Additionally, the FHLB redeemed \$1.3 million of our investment in FHLB stock and we received \$1.4 million of principal payments on our securities investments during the first half of 2015.

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, total deposits increased by \$14.3 million and FHLB advances decreased by \$8.5 million.

We recorded net income of \$1.2 million and \$2.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, compared to \$59 thousand and \$1.0 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. Results during 2015 included recaptures of loan losses of \$750 thousand in the first and second quarters and a grant of \$355 thousand from the U.S. Department of the Treasury s Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFI) Fund, compared to the same periods in 2014, when we recorded recaptures of loan losses of \$1.1 million and \$500 thousand for the first and second quarters, respectively, and a \$200 thousand grant from CDFI. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, we also generated higher net interest income before recapture of loan losses, higher net gain on sale of loans and lower non-interest expense compared to the same periods in 2014.

We became subject to the Basel III capital requirements effective January 1, 2015. The Basel III capital rules include a new ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and increase the minimum capital requirements. A new capital conservation buffer has also been established at levels above the regulatory minimum capital requirements. The final rules also revise the definition and calculation of Tier 1 capital, Total capital and risk-weighted assets. The implementation of the Basel III capital requirements is transitional and phases in through the end of 2018. See Regulatory Capital for additional information.

#### **Results of Operations**

Net Income

We recorded net income of \$1.2 million, or \$0.04 per diluted common share, and \$2.5 million, or \$0.08 per diluted common share, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respectively. For the same periods a year ago, we recorded net income of \$59 thousand, or \$0.00 per diluted common share, and \$1.0 million, or \$0.05 per diluted common share, respectively. The increases in net income during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 were primarily due to higher net interest income before recapture of loan losses, higher non-interest income and lower non-interest expense. In addition, we recorded higher recapture of loan losses during the second quarter of 2015.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income before recapture of loan losses was \$3.1 million for the second quarter of 2015, which is an increase of \$227 thousand, or 8%, from \$2.9 million for the second quarter of 2014. The increase in net interest income from the second quarter of 2014 was primarily due to higher interest income on loans and securities.

#### Table of Contents

Interest income and fees on loans was \$3.8 million for the second quarter of 2015, up \$90 thousand, or 2%, from the second quarter of 2014. The increase in loan interest income from the second quarter of 2014 was driven by growth in the loan portfolio, including loans held for sale. The average balance of loans receivable increased by \$39.6 million to \$307.4 million for the second quarter of 2015 from \$267.8 million for the second quarter of 2014 and resulted in an increase of \$511 thousand in interest income. Partially offsetting this increase was a decrease of \$421 thousand in interest income as our average yield on loans decreased 59 basis points to 4.92% for the second quarter of 2015 from 5.51% for the second quarter of 2014. The lower average yield on loans for the second quarter of 2015 was primarily due to payoffs of loans which carried higher coupon rates than the average yield on total loans, lower coupon rates on loan originations as a result of the low interest rate environment and higher amortization expense on deferred origination costs.

Other interest income was \$243 thousand for the second quarter of 2015, up \$161 thousand, or 196%, from the second quarter of 2014. The increase from the second quarter of 2014 was primarily due to a special cash dividend on FHLB stock of \$160 thousand received during the second quarter of 2015.

Total interest expense was \$971 thousand for the second quarter of 2015, up \$11 thousand, or 1%, from the second quarter of 2014. Interest expense on deposits was \$435 thousand for the second quarter of 2015, up \$8 thousand, or 2%, from the second quarter of 2014. The increase in deposit interest expense from the second quarter of 2014 was due to growth in interest-bearing deposits. The impact of higher average interest-bearing deposit balances more than offset the impact of lower deposit rates in the second quarter of 2015. The average balance of deposits increased by \$13.5 million to \$224.1 million for the second quarter of 2015 from \$210.6 million for the second quarter of 2014 and resulted in an increase of \$40 thousand in interest expense. The average cost of deposits decreased by 3 basis points to 78 basis points for the second quarter of 2015 from 81 basis points for the second quarter of 2014 and resulted in a decrease of \$32 thousand in interest expense.

Interest expense on borrowings was \$536 thousand for the second quarter of 2015, up from \$533 thousand for the second quarter of 2014. The increase of \$3 thousand in interest expense on borrowings primarily reflected an increase of \$14 thousand in interest expense on FHLB advances and a decrease of \$11 thousand in interest expense on the Debentures as a result of the debt modification in 2014. The increase of \$14 thousand in interest expense on FHLB advances was primarily due to an increase of \$6.4 million in the average balance of FHLB advances, which increased interest expense by \$40 thousand, and a decrease of 12 basis points in the average cost of FHLB advances, which decreased interest expense by \$26 thousand.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, net interest income before recapture of loan losses totaled \$6.1 million, up \$387 thousand, or 7%, from \$5.7 million of net interest income before recapture of loan losses for the same period a year ago. The increase in net interest income primarily resulted from an increase of \$26.1 million in average interest-earning assets.

## Table of Contents

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and costs, and certain other information for the periods indicated. All average balances are daily average balances. The yields set forth below include the effect of deferred loan fees, and discounts and premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest income or expense. We do not accrue interest on loans on non-accrual status; however, the balance of these loans is included in the total average balance of loans receivable, which has the effect of reducing average loan yields.

#### For the three months ended June 30,

	2015					2014					
(Dellars in Thomas In)		Average			Average Yield/ Average				•		
(Dollars in Thousands) Assets	J	Balance	In	iterest	Cost	ŀ	Balance	In	iterest	Cost	
Interest-earning assets:											
Interest-earning deposits	\$	2,379	\$	2	0.34%	\$	2,944	\$	3	0.41%	
Federal Funds sold and other	Ψ	2,577	Ψ.	_	0.0 170	Ψ	2,>	Ψ		070	
short-term investments		21,374		13	0.24%		29,238		18	0.25%	
Securities		16,184		90	2.22%		17,716		104	2.35%	
Loans receivable (1)		307,358		3,779	4.92%		267,820		3,689	5.51%	
FHLB stock		3,461		228	26.35%		3,737		61	6.53%	
Total interest-earning assets		350,756	\$	4,112	4.69%		321,455	\$	3,875	4.82%	
Non-interest-earning assets		7,220					9,179				
Total assets	\$	357,976				\$	330,634				
Liabilities and Stockholders											
Equity											
Interest-bearing liabilities:											
Money market deposits	\$	17,349	\$	19	0.44%	\$	15,382	\$	15	0.39%	
Passbook deposits		36,701		29	0.32%		36,503		29	0.32%	
NOW and other demand deposits		28,782		5	0.07%		30,978		7	0.09%	
Certificate accounts		141,283		382	1.08%		127,787		376	1.18%	
Total deposits		224,115		435	0.78%		210,650		427	0.81%	
FHLB advances		85,907		500	2.33%		79,500		486	2.45%	
Senior debt (2)		-		-	-		2,867		-	-	
Junior subordinated debentures											
(3)		5,100		36	2.82%		6,000		47	3.13%	
Total interest-bearing liabilities		315,122	\$	971	1.23%		299,017	\$	960	1.28%	
Non-interest-bearing liabilities		4,020					5,098				
Stockholders Equity		38,834					26,519				
Total liabilities and stockholders											
equity	\$	357,976				\$	330,634				
Net interest rate spread (4)			\$	3,141	3.46%			\$	2,915	3.54%	
Net interest rate margin (5)					3.58%					3.63%	

<sup>(1)</sup> Amount is net of deferred loan fees, loan discounts, and loans in process, and includes loans receivable held for sale.

<sup>(2)</sup> No interest expense was recognized on the senior debt post restructuring because the floating interest rate on the remaining modified loan did not exceed the floor rate of 6% post modification. Paid off in October 2014.

	24
(5)	Net interest rate margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.
(4)	Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.
(3)	2014 interest expense included compounding on past due interest. Interest on the Debentures was brought current in October 2014.

## Table of Contents

#### For the six months ended June 30,

			201	5				2014	1	
(5.4)		Average			Average Yield/		Average			Average Yield/
(Dollars in Thousands) Assets		Balance	In	terest	Cost	ŀ	Balance	In	terest	Cost
Interest-earning assets:										
Interest-earning deposits	\$	2,351	\$	4	0.34%	\$	3,005	\$	6	0.40%
Federal Funds sold and other										
short-term investments		20,638		24	0.23%		38,400		45	0.23%
Securities		16,237		184	2.27%		13,456		168	2.50%
Loans receivable (1)		304,903		7,503	4.92%		263,359		7,315	5.56%
FHLB stock		3,898	_	302	15.50%		3,737	_	137	7.33%
Total interest-earning assets		348,027	\$	8,017	4.61%		321,957	\$	7,671	4.77%
Non-interest-earning assets	_	7,010				_	8,758			
Total assets	\$	355,037				\$	330,715			
Liabilities and Stockholders										
Equity										
Interest-bearing liabilities:										
Money market deposits	\$	16,965	\$	35	0.41%	\$	15,683	\$	31	0.40%
Passbook deposits		36,751		58	0.32%		36,921		59	0.32%
NOW and other demand deposits		29,275		11	0.08%		30,816		14	0.09%
Certificate accounts		138,797		746	1.07%		127,656		784	1.23%
Total deposits		221,788		850	0.77%		211,076		888	0.84%
FHLB advances		85,511		996	2.33%		79,500		976	2.46%
Senior debt (2)		-		-	-		2,886		-	-
Junior subordinated debentures (3)		5,100		71	2.78%		6,000		94	3.13%
Total interest-bearing liabilities		312,399	\$	1,917	1.23%		299,462	\$	1,958	1.31%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities		4,307					5,092			
Stockholders Equity		38,331					26,161			
Total liabilities and stockholders										
equity	\$	355,037				\$	330,715			
Net interest rate spread (4)			\$	6,100	3.38%			\$	5,713	3.46%
Net interest rate margin (5)					3.51%					3.55%

<sup>(1)</sup> Amount is net of deferred loan fees, loan discounts, and loans in process, and includes loans receivable held for sale.

<sup>(2)</sup> No interest expense was recognized on the senior debt post restructuring because the floating interest rate on the remaining modified loan did not exceed the floor rate of 6% post modification. Paid off in October 2014.

<sup>(3) 2014</sup> interest expense included compounding on past due interest. Interest on the Debentures was brought current in October 2014.

<sup>(4)</sup> Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.

(5) Net interest rate margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

Table of Contents
Recapture of Loan Losses
We recorded a \$750 thousand recapture of loan losses for the second quarter of 2015, compared to a \$500 thousand recapture of loan losses for the second quarter of 2014. The recapture of loan losses during the second quarter of 2015 was primarily due to the reduction in the loans held for investment portfolio, continued improvements in credit quality, and declines in net charge-offs and overall historical loss factors. See Allowance for Loan Losses for additional information.
For the six months ended June 30, 2015, we recorded a recapture of loan losses of \$1.5 million compared to \$1.6 million for the same period a year ago. The recapture of loan losses during the first half of 2015 primarily reflected a reduction in the loans held for investment portfolio and continued improvements in credit quality.
Non-interest Income
Non-interest income was \$492 thousand for the second quarter of 2015, up \$428 thousand, or 669%, from the second quarter of 2014. The increase in non-interest income from the second quarter of 2014 was primarily due to a \$380 thousand gain on sale of loans and a decrease of \$33 thousand in net loss on sale of REOs.
For the six months ended June 30, 2015, non-interest income totaled \$1.1 million compared to \$397 thousand for the same period a year ago. The increase in non-interest income was primarily due to a gain on sale of loans of \$514 thousand during the first half of 2015. We also received \$200 thousand more in CDFI grant and recorded a small net gain on sale of REOs during the first half of 2015, compared to a net loss on sale of REOs of \$50 thousand during the first half of 2014.
Non-interest Expense
Non-interest expense was \$3.2 million for the second quarter of 2015, down \$196 thousand, or 6%, from the second quarter of 2014. The decrease in non-interest expense from the second quarter of 2014 was primarily due to a decrease of \$81 thousand in FDIC assessments, a decrease of \$213 thousand in REO expense, primarily relating to valuation write-downs, and an increase of \$77 thousand in other expense, primarily relating to provision for unfunded loan commitments.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, non-interest expense totaled \$6.3 million compared to \$6.6 million for the same period a year ago. The decrease in non-interest expense during the first half of 2015 primarily reflected a decrease of \$185 thousand in professional services expense, a decrease of \$175 thousand in FDIC assessments and a decrease of \$225 thousand in REO expenses, which were partially offset by an increase of \$243 thousand in compensation and benefits expense. Professional services expense for the first half of 2015 was lower than in the first half of 2014 due to legal and consulting fees incurred in the first half of 2014 in connection with our request for an extension of the maturity of the Debentures. The decrease in REO expense during the first half of 2015 was primarily due to lower provision for losses on REO reflecting fewer foreclosures and stable property values. Compensation and benefits expense increased primarily due to bonus accruals and salary increases.

Income	Taxes
ricconic	I COUCE

The Company s income tax expense was \$6 thousand and \$8 thousand for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to \$0 and \$3 thousand for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 respectively. The tax expense for 2015 and 2014 primarily reflected the statutory minimum taxes paid to the state of California, and the use of tax carryforwards to offset current taxable income in the periods presented.

#### **Financial Condition**

Total Assets

Total assets were \$359.2 million at June 30, 2015, which represented an increase of \$8.3 million, or 2%, from total assets of \$350.9 million at December 31, 2014. The increase in assets during the first half of 2015 was primarily due to an increase of \$30.9 million in cash and cash equivalents. This was partially offset by a net decrease of \$19.0 million in loans receivable, including loans held for sale, as a result of the completion of a bulk loan sale for approximately \$45.0 million.

26

Table of Contents
Loans Receivable Held for Sale
Loans receivable held for sale at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 totaled \$82.0 million and \$19.5 million, respectively, and consisted of multi-family loans. During the first half of 2015, we originated \$31.4 million of multi-family loans in our held for sale portfolio. In addition, during the first half of 2015, we reclassified \$90.2 million of multi-family loans from loans receivable held for investment to loans receivable held for sale in order to comply with our Loan Concentration Risk Management Policy, which was revised in March 2015 to comply with the OCC s Loan Concentration Guidelines. Loan sales totaled \$59.0 million and loan repayments totaled \$166 thousand during the first half of 2015.
Loans Receivable Held for Investment
Our gross loan portfolio decreased by \$82.1 million to \$201.5 million at June 30, 2015, from \$283.6 million at December 31, 2014. The decrease in our loan portfolio during the first half of 2015 primarily consisted of a decrease of \$67.8 million in our multi-family residential real estate loan portfolio, a decrease of \$5.6 million in our single family residential real estate loan portfolio, a decrease of \$3.7 million in our commercial real estate loan portfolio and a decrease of \$4.9 million in our church loan portfolio.

Loans originated for investment totaled \$32.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, compared to loans originated for investment of \$40.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. Loan repayments for the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled \$24.6 million, compared to \$22.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. Loans transferred to our held for sale portfolio during the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled \$90.2 million.

Gross loan charge-offs during the first half of 2015 totaled \$53 thousand, compared to gross loan charge-offs of \$442 thousand during the first half of 2014. Loans transferred to REO during the first half of 2015 totaled \$843 thousand, compared to \$1.8 million during the first half of 2014.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We record a provision for loan losses as a charge to earnings when necessary in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses (ALLL) at a level sufficient, in management s judgment, to absorb probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio. At least quarterly we conduct an assessment of the overall quality of the loan portfolio and general economic trends in the local market. The determination of the appropriate level for the allowance is based on that review, considering such factors as historical loss experience for each type of loan, the size and composition of our loan portfolio, the levels and composition of our loan delinquencies, non-performing loans and net loan charge-offs, the value of underlying collateral on problem loans, regulatory policies, general economic conditions, and other factors related to the collectability of loans in the portfolio.

Our ALLL decreased by \$1.6 million to \$6.9 million, or 3.43% of our gross loans receivable held for investment, at June 30, 2015, from \$8.5 million, or 2.97% of our gross loans receivable held for investment, at December 31, 2014, primarily reflecting \$1.5 million of recapture of loan losses. The recapture of \$1.5 million was primarily due to shrinkage of the loans held for investment portfolio, continued improvements in

credit quality and declines in net charge-offs and overall historical loss factors. We continue to maintain our allowance at a level that we believe is appropriate given the significant reduction in delinquencies and non-performing loans, the continued improvement in our asset quality metrics and the high quality of our loan originations.

Our asset quality continues to show signs of improvement as our loan delinquencies and non-performing loans are at their lowest levels since December 2009. As of June 30, 2015, we had total delinquencies of \$1.7 million, compared to total delinquencies of \$2.5 million at December 31, 2014. Loan delinquencies decreased by \$775 thousand during the first half of 2015 primarily due to two loans foreclosed and transferred to REO.

27

#### Table of Contents

Non-performing loans (NPLs) consist of delinquent loans that are 90 days or more past due and other loans, including troubled debt restructurings that do not qualify for accrual status. At June 30, 2015, NPLs totaled \$6.7 million, compared to \$8.9 million at December 31, 2014. The decrease of \$2.2 million in NPLs was primarily due to transfers to REO of \$843 thousand, payoff of \$793 thousand, repayments of \$419 thousand and charge-offs of \$53 thousand.

In connection with our review of the adequacy of our ALLL, we track the amount and percentage of our NPLs that are paying currently, but nonetheless must be classified as NPL for reasons unrelated to payments, such as lack of current financial information and an insufficient period of satisfactory performance. As of June 30, 2015, \$5.7 million, or 84%, of our total NPLs of \$6.7 million were current in their payments. Also, in determining the ALLL, we consider the ratio of the ALLL to NPLs, which increased to 102.79% at June 30, 2015 from 95.52% at December 31, 2014.

When reviewing the adequacy of the ALLL, we also consider the impact of charge-offs, including the changes and trends. Gross loan charge-offs during the first half of 2015 were \$53 thousand compared to \$442 thousand during the first half of 2014. The charge-offs during the first half of 2015 were primarily due to impairment losses on a foreclosed church loan and a delinquent single-family residential real estate loan that was fully written off. In determining charge-offs, we update our estimates of collateral values on NPLs by obtaining new appraisals at least every nine months. If the estimated fair value of the loan collateral less estimated selling costs is less than the recorded investment in the loan, a charge-off for the difference is recorded to reduce the loan to its estimated fair value, less estimated selling costs. Therefore, certain losses inherent in our total NPLs are recognized periodically through charge-offs. The impact of updating these estimates of collateral value and recognizing any required charge-offs is to increase charge-offs and reduce the ALLL required on these loans. As of June 30, 2015, we had written down 65% of our NPLs to estimated fair value less estimated selling costs. The remaining 35% of our NPLs at June 30, 2015 had specific reserves or were reported at cost because the fair value of collateral less estimated selling costs exceeded the recorded investment in the loan. As of June 30, 2015, the average loan to value on NPLs was 52%.

Recoveries during the first half of 2015 totaled \$11 thousand compared to \$1.3 million during the first half of 2014. Recoveries during the first half of 2014 were primarily due to payoffs of two non-accrual loans which had been fully written off in late 2011, resulting in recoveries of \$1.1 million.

Impaired loans at June 30, 2015 were \$19.1 million, compared to \$23.5 million at December 31, 2014. Specific reserves for impaired loans were \$1.4 million, or 7.35% of the aggregate impaired loan amount at June 30, 2015, compared to \$1.5 million, or 6.40%, at December 31, 2014. Excluding specific reserves for impaired loans, our coverage ratio (general allowance as a percentage of total non-impaired loans) increased to 3.02% at June 30, 2015, from 2.66% at December 31, 2014, primarily as we transferred over \$90 million of loans held for investment to loans held for sale.

Management believes that the ALLL is adequate to cover probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio as of June 30, 2015, but there can be no assurance that actual losses will not exceed the estimated amounts. In addition, the OCC and the FDIC periodically review the ALLL as an integral part of their examination process. These agencies may require an increase in the ALLL based on their judgments of the information available to them at the time of their examinations.

Real Estate Owned

During the first half of 2015, REO increased by \$96 thousand to \$2.2 million at June 30, 2015, from \$2.1 million at December 31, 2014. During the first half of 2015, two church loans totaling \$843 thousand were foreclosed and the properties securing the loans were transferred to REO. Two REO properties were sold during 2015 for net proceeds of \$621 thousand and a net gain of less than \$1 thousand. At June 30, 2015, the Bank s REO consisted of two church buildings.

Table of Contents
Deposits
Deposits totaled \$232.2 million at June 30, 2015, up \$14.3 million from December 31, 2014. During the first half of 2015, certificates of deposit increased by \$12.3 million and represented 64% of total deposits at June 30, 2015, compared to 62% of total deposits at December 31, 2014. Core deposits (NOW, demand, money market and passbook accounts) increased by \$2.0 million during the first half of 2015 and represented 36% of total deposits at June 30, 2015, compared to 38% of total deposits at December 31, 2014.
Borrowings
At June 30, 2015, total borrowings consisted of advances to the Bank from the FHLB of \$77.5 million and Debentures issued by the Company of \$5.1 million. At December 31, 2014, borrowings consisted of advances from the FHLB of \$86.0 million and Debentures of \$5.1 million. During the first half of 2015, we repaid \$8.5 million of the FHLB advance with proceeds from our loan sale in June.
Stockholders Equity
Stockholders equity was \$39.6 million, or 11.04% of the Company s total assets, at June 30, 2015, compared to \$37.3 million, or 10.62% of the Company s total assets, at December 31, 2014. The increase in stockholders equity during the first half of 2015 was primarily due to net earning for such period.
Liquidity
The objective of liquidity management is to ensure that we have the continuing ability to fund operations and meet other obligations on a timely and cost-effective basis. The Bank's sources of funds include deposits, advances from the FHLB and other borrowings, proceeds from the sale of loans, REO, and investment securities, and payments of principal and interest on loans and investment securities. The Bank is currently approved by the FHLB to borrow up to 30% of total assets to the extent the Bank provides qualifying collateral and holds sufficient FHLB stock. This approved limit and collateral requirement would have permitted the Bank, as of June 30, 2015, to borrow an additional \$28.7 million. Also, the Bank has received funds from investments made by the Company into the equity of the Bank, including the investments made as part of the recapitalization completed in August 2013 and the private placement transactions completed in October 2014.
The Bank s primary uses of funds include withdrawal of and interest payments on deposits, originations of loans, purchases of investment securities, and payment of operating expenses. Also, when the Bank has more funds than required for reserve requirements or short-term liquidity needs, the Bank sells federal funds to the Federal Reserve Bank or other financial institutions. The Bank s liquid assets at June 30, 2015 consisted of \$51.7 million in cash and cash equivalents and \$14.9 million in securities available-for-sale that were not pledged, compared to

liquid assets of \$20.8 million in cash and cash equivalents and \$15.9 million in securities available-for-sale that were not pledged at

December 31, 2014.

Currently, we believe that the Bank has sufficient liquidity to support growth over the foreseeable future.

The Company s separate company liquidity is based primarily on the proceeds from financing transactions, such as the private placements completed in August 2013 and October 2014. The Company has not been able to obtain funds from the Bank since 2010 as the Order placed limitations on the Bank, including prohibition of the payment of dividends by the Bank without prior regulatory approval.

The Company recorded consolidated net cash outflows from operating activities of \$14.8 million during the six months ended June 30, 2015, compared to consolidated net cash inflows from operating activities of \$914 thousand during the six months ended June 30, 2015. Net cash outflows from operating activities during the first half of 2015 were primarily attributable to originations of loans held for sale.

#### **Table of Contents**

The Company recorded consolidated net cash inflows from investing activities of \$39.9 million during the six months ended June 30, 2015, compared to consolidated net cash outflows from investing activities of \$24.8 million during the six months ended June 30, 2014. Net cash inflows from investing activities during the first half of 2015 were primarily attributable to proceeds from sale of loans, principal repayments on securities, proceeds from sale of REOs and proceeds from redemption of FHLB stock.

The Company recorded consolidated net cash inflows from financing activities of \$5.8 million and \$326 thousand during the six months ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively. Net cash inflows from financing activities during the first half of 2015 were primarily attributable to a net increase in deposits.

#### **Capital Resources**

Our principal subsidiary, Broadway Federal, must comply with capital standards established by the OCC in the conduct of its business. Failure to comply with such capital requirements may result in significant limitations on its business or other sanctions. The Dodd-Frank Act, among other things, now imposes specific capital requirements on us as a savings and loan holding company as well. These requirements must be no less than those to which federally insured depository institutions are currently subject. The current regulatory capital requirements are described in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and in Regulatory Capital below.

#### **Regulatory Capital**

The Federal Reserve and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation approved final capital rules in July 2013 that substantially amend the existing capital rules for banks. These new rules reflect, in part, certain standards initially adopted by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in December 2010 (which standards are commonly referred to as Basel III ) as well as requirements contemplated by the Dodd-Frank Act.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2015, we became subject to the Basel III capital requirements, including the standardized approach for calculating risk-weighted assets in accordance with subpart D of the final capital rule. The final rules also revise the definition and calculation of Tier 1 capital, Total capital, and include a new Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital primarily includes common shareholders—equity less certain deductions for goodwill and other intangibles net of related taxes, MSRs net of related taxes that arise from tax loss and credit carryforwards. Tier 1 capital is primarily comprised of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, perpetual preferred stock and certain qualifying capital instruments that are subject to phase-out from Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital primarily includes qualifying subordinated debt and qualifying ALLL.

The new capital rules include a new Common Equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets minimum ratio of 4.5%, raise the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets from 4.0% to 6.0%, require a minimum ratio of Total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%, and require a

minimum Tier 1 Leverage ratio of 4.0%. A new capital conservation buffer is also established above the regulatory minimum capital requirements. This capital conservation buffer will be phased in beginning January 1, 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and will increase each subsequent year by an additional 0.625% until reaching its final level of 2.5% on January 1, 2019. An institution that does not meet the conservation buffer will be subject to restrictions on certain activities, including payment of dividends, stock repurchases, and discretionary bonuses to executive officers.

The Bank is subject to higher capital requirements under the Consent Order entered into by the Bank with the OCC on October 30, 2013. The Consent Order raised the Bank s minimum capital requirements to 9% for Tier 1 Leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets) and 13% for Total Capital ratio (Total capital to risk-weighted assets). The Bank was in compliance with all capital requirements in effect at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

#### Table of Contents

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, together with the higher capital requirements that the Bank is required to meet under the Consent Order applicable to it, are presented below.

								Capita	ıl		
					Required	for	Requirements under Consent				
					Capital Ade	quacy					
		Actua	ıl		Purpose	es		Order			
	Amount		Ratio	Amount R		Ratio	Amount		Ratio		
	(Dollars in thousands)										
June 30, 2015:											
Tier 1 Leverage	\$	42,578	11.89%	\$	14,323	4.00%	\$	32,227	9.00%		
Common Equity Tier 1	\$	42,578	17.87%	\$	10,723	4.50%		N/A	N/A		
Tier 1	\$	42,578	17.87%	\$	14,297	6.00%		N/A	N/A		
Total Capital	\$	45,606	19.14%	\$	19,063	8.00%	\$	30,978	13.00%		
December 31, 2014:											
Tier 1 Leverage	\$	39,773	11.34%	\$	14,028	4.00%	\$	31,562	9.00%		
Tier 1	\$	39,773	16.41%	\$	9,695	4.00%		N/A	N/A		
Total Capital	\$	42,870	17.69%	\$	19,390	8.00%	\$	31,508	13.00%		

#### ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not Applicable

#### ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

#### **Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures**

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures was performed under the supervision of the Company s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as of June 30, 2015. Based on that evaluation, the Company s CEO and CFO concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2015. There were no significant changes during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 in the Company s internal controls over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

Table of Contents		
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION		
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS		
None		
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS		
Not Applicable		
Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS		
None		
Item 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES		
None		
Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES		
Not Applicable		
Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION		
None		

## Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit	
Number*	
3.1	Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant and amendments thereto (Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
3.2	Bylaws of Registrant (Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 14, 2013)
10.1	Form of Subscription Agreement entered into between the Registrant and various investors, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
10.2.1	Subscription Agreement entered into between the Registrant and Gapstow Financial Growth Capital Fund I LP, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.2.1 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
10.2.2	Investor Rights Letter Agreement entered into between the Registrant and Gapstow Financial Growth Capital Fund I LP, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.2.2 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
10.3.1	Subscription Agreement entered into between the Registrant and National Community Investment Fund, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.3.1 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
10.3.2	Investor Rights Letter Agreement entered into between the Registrant and National Community Investment Fund, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.3.2 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
10.4	Registration Rights Agreement entered into among the Registrant, Gapstow Financial Growth Capital Fund I LP, and National Community Investment Fund, dated October 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant on November 13, 2014)
31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

## Table of Contents

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitions Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

<sup>\*</sup> Exhibits followed by a parenthetical reference are incorporated by reference herein from the document filed by the Registrant with the SEC described therein. Except as otherwise indicated, the SEC File No. for each incorporated document is 000-27464.

## Table of Contents

#### **SIGNATURES**

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 13, 2015 By: /s/ Wayne-Kent A. Bradshaw

/s/ Wayne-Kent A. Bradshaw Wayne-Kent A. Bradshaw Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 13, 2015 By: <u>/s/ Brenda J. Battey</u>

Brenda J. Battey
Chief Financial Officer

34